
THREE RIVERS MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL 
Regular Board Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, September 20th, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
Meeting held at Three Rivers Montessori: 17267 Yale St NW, Elk River MN 55330

Sent to OW - 09/14/2023 | Placed on Website - 09/14/2023 

I. CALL TO ORDER by Chairperson: 

II. ROLL CALL + DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

1. Board Members Present + Declarations: 
2. Board Members Absent: 
3. Other Attendees: 

III. REVIEW OF TRM MISSION & VISION STATEMENTS 

Mission: Empowering students to reach their full potential through authentic Montessori learning.
Vision: Academic Excellence * Community Engagement * Environmental Stewardship

IV. APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA 

1. ACTION ITEMS:
a. APPROVAL: Tonight’s Meeting Agenda

V. CONSENT AGENDA

1. ACTION ITEMS:
a. APPROVAL: Board Application from Cassie Zezulka
b. APPROVAL: Board Application from Nikki Patterson
c. APPROVAL: Board Application from Brooke Blomker
d. APPROVAL: Board Resignation from Rose Bleymeyer
e. APPROVAL: TRM Regular Board Meeting Minutes 08/15/23
f. APPROVAL: Student Withdrawal Policy

VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS

VI. FINANCE COMMITTEE

a. August Month End Financials
i. ACTION ITEM: Approve Prior Month Expenditures
ii. ACTION ITEM: Accept Prior Month Financial Report

VII. INFORMATION ITEMS

1. Enrollment Update
2. Staffing Update
3. MCA Update for Spring of 2023 data release
4. School Opening Report
5. Hubbli Metrics
6. ELP report



IX. DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Policy Reviews
a. Internal Controls Policy
b. Non-discrimination Policy

2. Add Employee Survey and Parent Survey to Board Calendar

X. REVIEW OF NEXT MEETING DATE

1. Date, Time, Location of Next Regular Board Meeting - Tuesday, October 17th, 2023 6:00
p.m. Location: At Three Rivers Montessori

2. Agenda Items Request or Send to Board Chair

XI. ADJOURNMENT

1.

Board Approved:











 

 
 

 
 

Application To Serve As A TRM Board Member Policy  
Date Created: 1-8-2020  
Approved By:  TRM Board of Directors 
Date Approved:  1-21-2020 
 
 

 
Application to serve as a member of Three Rivers Montessori Board of Directors 

 
In accordance to Minnesota state law, the board must include one licensed teacher who teaches at the school, one 
parent who has a child attending the school, and one community member who does not have a child attending the 
school and who does not teach at the school. In addition, two at-large members who provide additional expertise in 
school management or governance can be elected. Board members will be elected by membership and certified during 
the annual meeting. 
  
Terms are determined by the Board’s nominations committee and will be for one or two-year periods. 
Responsibilities of board members include: 

1. Supporting and advocating for the Mission of the school 
2. Serving as good stewards of taxpayer dollars  
3. Attending and participating in monthly meetings  
4. Serving on board subcommittees  
5. Refraining from breech of confidentiality on student and other private data 
6. Participating in mandatory training on finance, governance, and board procedures within the first 12 months of 

being elected.  
 
Applicant Name______________________________________________________________________________ 
If applicable, name(s) of children attending TRM 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone (cell)__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Email address __________________________________________________________ 
 
Background (please provide a brief background of your qualifications and 
skills)__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

Brooke Blomker 

15513 County Road 35, Elk River MN 55330 

320-223-9318 

brooke.blomker@gmail.com 

 I hold a master's degree in Developmental Psychology, and have worked in early childhood education my
entire career. I now work in Human Resources in a Project Mangement/Learning & Development role at a 



 

 
 

 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________  
 
Why do you wish to serve as a member of the board? 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Have you had previous experience serving on a board?           _____YES  ______NO   
If yes, please name the board  _______________________________________________  
 
If elected, what primary issues would you hope to address? 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

 nationwide education company, with operations in 14 states. Many of the schools I suppport in my role are
Montessori, and I love having the oppoortunity to marry what I'm good at - Human Resources, Project Management, 
and Learning & Development - with what I'm passionate about - supporting educators and children. 

 
 

The first time I set foot in a Montessori classroom, I was sold - I knew I wanted Montessori for my children. My  
husband and I have lived in Elk River since 2015, and as you can imagine, I was elated when I heard about Three
Rivers Montessori opening its' doors. A Montessori charter school offers such an amazing opportunity to this community. I am 
excited to continue serving on the board and giving back to a community I love. 

 

  I have worked in Human Resources supporting early childhood programs for the past five years (and honestly -
we should count the pandemic in dog-years!). During this time, I have learned that just when you think you have  
one issue solved, another pops up.  I know that establishing a new school comes with its' own set of unique  
challenges, and I am excited to listed to feedback from stakeholders, thinking creatively in partnership with  
them to address issues that arise. I think my knowledge of Montessori education, employment law, and employee  
and parent relations, makes me a strong candidate to continue serving on the Board. 

X 
Three Rivers Montessori Charter School ☺ 



THREE RIVERS MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL 
Regular Board Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, August 15th, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
Meeting held at Three Rivers Montessori: 17267 Yale St NW, Elk River MN 55330

Sent to OW - 08/10/2023 | Placed on Website - 08/10/2023 

Approved On:

I. CALL TO ORDER by Chairperson: Chris Castagneri at 6:02pm

II. ROLL CALL + DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

1. Board Members Present + Declarations: Rose Blemeyer, no conflicts, Tim Eilrich, no
conflicts, Josh Green, no conflicts, Brooke Blomker, no conflicts, Chris Castagneri, no
conflicts

2. Board Members Absent: Lydia Skadberg, late arrived at 6:15
3. Other Attendees: Antonio Kuklok, Ex Officio, Katie Curtis Director of Teaching and

Learning

III. REVIEW OF TRM MISSION & VISION STATEMENTS 

Mission: Empowering students to reach their full potential through authentic Montessori learning.
Vision: Academic Excellence * Community Engagement * Environmental Stewardship

Reviewed in Full with the board

IV. APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA 

1. ACTION ITEMS:
a. APPROVAL: Tonight’s Meeting Agenda

i. Motion to approve: Tim Eilrich
ii. Seconded: Josh Green, no further discussion
iii. All In Favor: All
iv. Opposed: None
v. Unanimous vote motion carried

V. CONSENT AGENDA

1. ACTION ITEMS:
a. APPROVAL: TRM Regular Board Meeting Minutes 6/20/23

i. Motion to approve: Rose Bleymeyer
ii. Seconded: Brooke Blomker, no further discussion
iii. All In Favor: All
iv. Opposed: None
v. Unanimous vote motion carried

b. APPROVAL: TRM Emergency Board Meeting Minutes 8/01/23
i. Motion to approve: Tim Eilrich
ii. Seconded: Lydia Skadberg
iii. All In Favor: All
iv. Opposed: None
v. Unanimous vote motion carried



c. APPROVAL: Board Meeting Agenda Setting Process Policy (Board Calendar) -
General discussion around items on the calendar and if items can be added,
changed, moved. Agreed the language allows them to.

i. Motion to approve: Tim Eilrich
ii. Seconded: Lydia Skadberg, no further discussion
iii. All In Favor: All
iv. Opposed: None
v. Unanimous vote motion carried

d. APPROVAL: Harassment and Violence Prohibition Policy Update - Josh Green
stated addition of the wording to include discrimination based on ethnic hair is
ridiculous, the ED rebutted stating that it is there because there have been
incidents of discrimination based on ethnic hair so legislation was passed to
require the addition of the wording

i. Motion to approve: Tim Eilrich
ii. Seconded: Josh Green, no further discussion
iii. All In Favor: All
iv. Opposed: None
v. Unanimous vote motion carried

e. APPROVAL: Education program selection of Campbellsville University for
Masters in Montessori Education for Nikki Patterson (K/1 Teacher): Discussion
around why this is coming to the board and how the Academic Excellence
committee handled it. Explanation around vague wording around what
certification means in the past and now having a Montessori expert to vette these
programs

i. Motion to approve: Rose Bleymeyer
ii. Seconded: Tim Eilrich, no further discussion
iii. All In Favor: All
iv. Opposed: None
v. Unanimous vote motion carried

f. APPROVAL: Resignation of Angie Johnson from the Board of Directors
i. Motion to approve: Tim Eilrich
ii. Seconded: Brooke Blomker, no further discussion
iii. All In Favor: All
iv. Opposed: None
v. Unanimous vote motion carried

vi. APPROVAL: Resignation of Tim Eilrich from the Board of Directors as a
parent member and reinstatement as a Community member: Look at term
limits and where Rose and Tim stand, will check in on this with the
authorizer, Tim explained his children are moving on but he sees value in
TRM and wants to help it succeed by continuing on the board

1. Motion to approve: Lydia Skadberg
2. Seconded: Rose Bleymeyer, no further discussion
3. All In Favor: All
4. Opposed: None
5. Unanimous vote motion carried

g. APPROVAL: Osprey Wilds Contract Amendment: This was approved at the May
board meeting, follow back up with OW, no vote needed and moved on to next
item, Antonio will forward signed document to Osprey Wilds once complete.

i. Motion to approve:
ii. Seconded:
iii. All In Favor:
iv. Opposed:

h. APPROVAL: Move $26,102 from general fund to food service fund to close out
SY 22’-23’- Required by auditors, common to have differences in funds,
Questions about why this move needs to be made and will this happen again in
the future. Confusion around the budget and reallocation process. Tim invited all
board members to join the Finance meeting to learn more.

i. Motion to approve: Tim Eilrich



ii. Seconded: Lydia Skadberg, no further discussion
iii. All In Favor: All
iv. Opposed: None
v. Unanimous vote motion carried

i. APPROVAL: Staff Handbook for SY 23’-24’ - Board Chair asked to update the
wording “Superintendent” to Executive Director. The document was updated as
such.

i. Motion to approve: Lydia Skadberg
ii. Seconded: Josh Green, no further discussion
iii. All In Favor: All
iv. Opposed: None
v. Unanimous vote motion carried

VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS

No public comments

VI. FINANCE COMMITTEE

a. June Month End Financials
i. ACTION ITEM: Approve Prior Month Expenditures

1. Motion to approve: Tim Eilrich
2. Seconded: Lydia Skadberg, no further discussion
3. All In Favor: All
4. Opposed: None
5. Unanimous vote, motion carried

ii. ACTION ITEM: Accept Prior Month Financial Report
1. Motion to approve: Tim Eilrich
2. Seconded: Lydia Skadberg,no further discussion
3. All In Favor: All
4. Opposed: None
5. Unanimous vote, motion carried

b. July Month End Financials
i. ACTION ITEM: Approve Prior Month Expenditures

1. Motion to approve: Tim Eilrich
2. Seconded: Lydia Skadberg, no further discussion
3. All In Favor: All
4. Opposed: None
5. Unanimous vote, motion carried

ii. ACTION ITEM: Accept Prior Month Financial Report
1. Motion to approve: Tim Eilrich
2. Seconded: Lydia Skadberg, no further discussion
3. All In Favor: All
4. Opposed: None
5. Unanimous vote, motion carried

VII. INFORMATION ITEMS

1. Enrollment Update
2. Building Update
3. Staffing Update
4. Audit Update

IX. DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Opening Enrollment for 5th Grade



ACTION ITEM:

a. Motion to approve: Tim Eilrich
b. Seconded: Lydia Skadberg, no further discussion
c. All In Favor: All
d. Opposed: None
e. Unanimous vote, motion carried

2. Midwest Studies Group Strategic Planning Session for the Board - In person either
October 9th (Monday), 10th (Tuesday), 18th (Wednesday), or 19th (Thursday)- Looking
at an 8am-12pm session, could do 4pm-8pm if absolutely necessary though this would
cost more - Agreed to Tuesday the 10th, 4pm-8pm

3. Board Committee Assignments - Motion to accept board roles for Finance, Development,
and Review Committees and deactivate the Academic Excellence Committee and
shifting duties to school leadership.

a. ACTION ITEM: Assign Board Members and deactivate Academic Excellence
Committee

b. Motion to approve: Tim Eilrich
c. Seconded: Lydia Skadberg, no further discussion
d. All In Favor: All
e. Opposed: None
f. Unanimous vote, motion carried

i. Finance Committee - Must be chaired by the Treasurer, Tim Eilrich and
Josh Green

1. The Budget and Finance Committee shall be responsible for presenting an
annual budget to the Board of Directors, making recommendations to the Board
of Directors on long-range financial and facilities planning, monitoring contracts
for bookkeeping services, ensuring compliance with state financial procedures,
and such other duties as are deemed appropriate and necessary by the Board of
Directors. The Budget and Finance Committee shall be chaired by the Treasurer.

ii. Development Committee (parent committee) - Must be a board member
who chairs this committee, Lydia Skadberg

1. The Development Committee shall plan and supervise all fundraising activities of
the Corporation. The Development Committee shall be chaired by a Director.
The Chair will work in collaboration with school leadership on all Development
committee activities.

2. Proposed: The Development Committee shall moderate communication in the
officially designated Three Rivers Montessori Parent Committee Facebook page.

iii. Review Committee - Board Chair must be on, Chris Castagneri, Rose
Bleymeyer, and Brooke Blomker

Proposed: The Review Committee shall work with the Executive Director to execute the
review process, monitor goals established by the board of directors, execute offer letters
for approval by the board of directors, and maintain communication with the board of
directors. The review committee shall be chaired by the Board Chair.

iv. Academic Excellence Committee - Vote to Remove within motion above
1. The Academic Excellence Committee shall be responsible for ensuring that

overall curricular policy remains faithful to the Corporation’s mission, for
reviewing specific curriculum choices on a regular basis and making
recommendations to the Board of Directors on adoption of curriculum materials,
and such other duties as are deemed appropriate and necessary by the Board of
Directors. (School Director proposal that this committee go dormant and
responsibility shift to school leadership, academic and programming updates are
built into the director’s monthly reports and this becomes more hands in whereas
the true definition stated above should fall to school leadership now that we are
fully operational)

g. Board Training Plan - No action taken
i. ACTION ITEM: Approve Regular Time

1. Motion to approve:
2. Seconded:
3. All In Favor:



4. Opposed:
4. Closed meeting in accordance with MN Stat. §13D.05 Subd. 3 to discuss closed meeting

in accordance with MN Stat. §13D.05 Subd. 2 to discuss educational data, health data,
medical data, welfare data, or mental health data that are not public data under section
13.32, 13.3805, subdivision 1, 13.384, or 13.46, subdivision 2 or 7 related to
discrimination charges filed against the school with the US Equal Employment
Opportunity Commision.

5. ACTION ITEM: Motion to move to closed session
a. Motion to approve: Chris motioned to move to closed Session in accordance with

MN Stat. §13D.05 Subd. 3 to discuss closed meeting in accordance with MN
Stat. §13D.05 Subd. 2 to discuss educational data, health data, medical data,
welfare data, or mental health data that are not public data under section 13.32,
13.3805, subdivision 1, 13.384, or 13.46, subdivision 2 or 7 related to
discrimination charges filed against the school with the US Equal Employment
Seconded: Tim Eilrich

b. All In Favor: All
c. Opposed: None
d. Session moved to closed and recorded

6. Motion to return to Open Session
7. ACTION ITEM: Motion to move to open session

a. Motion to approve: Chris Castagneri motions to move to open session
b. Seconded: Tim Eilrich
c. All In Favor: All
d. Opposed: None
e. Meeting moved back to open session at 8:25pm

X. REVIEW OF NEXT MEETING DATE

1. Date, Time, Location of Next Regular Board Meeting - Tuesday, September 20th, 2023
6:00 p.m. Location: At Three Rivers Montessori

2. Agenda Items Request or Send to Board Chair

XI. ADJOURNMENT

1. ACTION ITEM: Approve Regular Time
a. Motion to Adjourn: Lydia Skadberg
b. Seconded: Tim Eilrich
c. All In Favor: All
d. Opposed: None

Board Approved: Meeting adjourned at 8:34pm







Three Rivers Montessori
Elk River, Minnesota

District 4266

Financial Statements

August 31, 2023

FY2019 Data Based on Audited Data



Three Rivers Montessori 
Elk River, Minnesota 

August 2023 Financial Statements 
Executive Summary 

 
 
Summary of Key Financial Indicators 
 

 Average Daily Membership (ADM) Overview –  
o Original Budget: 167 
o Working Budget: 143 (Break even) 
o Actual:  TBD 

 The School’s projected net income for the year is $1,036. This would result in a 
projected cumulative fund balance of $281,863 or 13.9% of expenditures at fiscal year‐
end. 

 
Financial Statement Key Points 
 

 As of month‐end, 16.67% of the year was complete. 

 Cash Balance as of the reporting period is $263,455, up from the previous month of 
$246,876. This was due to receiving your first holdback payment for FY23. 

 Revenues received at end of the reporting period – 15.55% 

 Expenditures disbursed at end of the reporting period – 9.7% 
 
 
Other Items 
 

 Your audit fieldwork has been completed and we are waiting on the official draft from 
Abdo. 

 FY24 Lease aid needs to be completed soon to assist with cash flow. Please watch your 
email for your applicable conflict of interest form. The Board Chair and Executive 
Director will sign the rest of the application. 
 

 
 
 
 
Supplemental Information (see separate attachments) 
 
A  separate  report  is provided  that  shows  the payment detail,  receipts  that were posted and 
journal entry transaction that were recorded during the month (if any).  
 
 
Please contact Mindy Wachter at mindy.wachter@bergankdv.com or 612-227-7793 should you have any questions 
related to the financial statements. 

Prepared by Creative Planning Page 2



Resources to Operate Programs (Revenues): Funds Used to Provide Programs and Services (Expenses):

Approved Budget Approved Budget

Working Budget Working Budget

Year to Date 15.55% Year to Date 9.70%

Balance 84.45% 90.30%

Where funds will come from to operate the school:

$1,716,127 $1,834,169

Budgets for the Year

How the money is budgeted to be spent:

Fund Balance History

$316,046 $196,968 $119,078

$2,299,131 $2,215,565 $83,566

$2,032,173 $2,031,137 $1,036

Excess / Deficit

Three Rivers Montessori

Elk River, Minnesota

Financial Statements Dashboard

As of August 31, 2023

Financial Summary ‐ Budgeted Amounts and Year to Date Activity

State Revenues
91%

Federal Revenues
6%

Local Revenues
3%

Salaries and Wages
32%

Employee Benefits
7%

Purchased Services
27%

Supplies and 
Materials

7%

Facilities and 
Equipment

0% Special Ed, CARES 
& Title Programs

26%

Dues and 
Memberships; 
Fees; Other 
Expenses…

16% 10%

‐10.00%

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

(70,000)

130,000

330,000

530,000

18‐19 19‐20 20‐21 21‐22 22‐23

Annual Surplus/Deficit Fund Balance % of Expenditures

Year to 
Date

Year to 
Date

Prepared by Creative Planning Page 3



Cash Balance Projection

Current Year Financial Trend

Current Year Student Enrollment Summary

Enrollment History

115

125

135

145

155

165

175

8/31 10/1 10/31 11/30 12/31 1/31 2/28 3/31 4/30 5/31 EOY

ADM (Funding) Membership (Enrollment) Budgeted Enrollment

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
Revenues Expenses Year to Date

 ‐

 20.00

 40.00

 60.00

 80.00

 100.00

 120.00

 140.00

 160.00

 180.00

20‐21 21‐22 22‐23

K‐6

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

Ju
l 3
1

A
u
g 3

1

Sep
t 3

0

O
ct 3

1

N
o
v 3

0

D
ec 3

1

Jan
 3
1

Feb
 2
8

M
ar 3

1

A
p
r 3

0

M
ay 3

1

Ju
n
e

3
0

Prepared by Creative Planning Page 4



Unaudited 

Balance         

7‐1‐2023

Month Ending 

Balance    

Assets
Current Assets

101 Main Bank 171,912$            263,455$           
101 Savings Bank 400                      ‐                          
115 Accounts receivable 1,327                   ‐                          
121 State aids receivable 126,116              83,717               

Current year state holdback 46,076               
122 Federal aids receivable through MDE 50,530                8,915                  
131 Prepaid expenses 14,397                ‐                          

Total all assets 364,682$            402,164$           

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Current Liabilities

201 Salaries and wages payable 28,639$              1,323$               
206 Accounts payable 33,093                ‐                          
215 Payroll deductions and contributions payable 19,908                935                     
230 Deferred revenue ‐ lunch accounts 2,215                   ‐                          

Total liabilities 83,855                2,258                  

Fund Balance
Unreserved fund balance 252,123              252,123             

Nonspendable fund balance (inventories, prepaids) 14,397                14,397               

Reserved Fund Balance ‐ MA Billing 278                      278                     

Restriced fund balance ‐ Community Service 14,029                14,029               
Net income to date ‐                           119,078             

Total fund balance 280,827              399,906             

Total liabilities and fund balance 364,682$            402,164$           

Three Rivers Montessori
Elk River, Minnesota

Balance Sheet
As of August 31, 2023

This financial report is prepared in a modified format in that they exclude footnotes and required 

supplementary information in order to be considered a full set of financial statements. The excluded 

portions will be included in the School’s fiscal year end financial statements. Creative Planning is not 

a licensed CPA firm and no CPA provides any assurance on this financial report.  

Prepared by Creative Planning Page 5



Months to Date 2 16.67%

2023‐2024

Original 

Budget

2023‐2024 

Working 

Budget

2023‐2024 

Year to Date 

Actual

Year to Date 

Percent of 

Working 

Budget

167 143 0.00 0.00%

Weighted Average Daily Membership 167.00 143.00 0.00 0.00%

General Fund ‐ 01
Revenues

State Revenues
211 General education aid 1,276,007      1,115,276      191,464         17.17%
212 Literacy incentive aid 12,811           12,811           ‐                      0.00%
201 Endowment fund apportionment 7,243             7,243             ‐                      0.00%

348‐300 Charter school lease aid 219,438         187,902         ‐                      0.00%
317 Long‐term facilities maintenance revenue 22,044           18,876           ‐                      0.00%
360 Special education aid 482,089         466,783         63,941           13.70%
071 Medical assistance billing revenue ‐                      1,000             90                   9.01%
999 Prior year over/under accrual 60,000           20,000           ‐                      0.00%

Estimated state holdback ‐                      ‐                      46,076          
Total state revenues 2,079,632      1,829,891      301,571         16.48%

Federal Revenues

859 Prior year CSP ‐                      0.00%
401 414 Title programs 2,078             2,078             ‐                      0.00%
419 425 Special education aid 27,522           27,522           1,150             4.18%
499 CRF/CARES 12,661           10,482           7,766             74.09%

Total federal revenues 42,262           40,082           8,915             22.24%
Local Revenues

    Deposits without documentation ‐                     
050     Fees collected 8,245             8,245             ‐                      0.00%
096     Gifts and donations 3,521             3,521             ‐                      0.00%
099     Other local revenues 11,138           11,138           ‐                      0.00%
621     Sales of materials purchased for resale 1,000             1,000             ‐                      0.00%

Total local revenues 23,904           23,904           ‐                      0.00%
Total revenues 2,145,798$   1,893,878$   310,486$       16.39%

Expenditures
General Fund

100 Salaries 700,448         601,800         41,210           6.85%
200 Benefits 168,759         140,746         24,322           17.28%

Projected salaries and benefits payable 2,243            
Total salaries, wages, and benefits payable 869,207         742,546         67,775           9.13%

305 Contracted services 214,200         214,200         21,029           9.82%
315 Contracted technology services 2,000             2,000             5,131             256.54%
320 Communications services 5,100             5,100             674                 13.21%
329 Postage 1,231             1,231             ‐                      0.00%
330 Utilities cost 24,627           24,627           2,515             10.21%
340 Property and liability insurance 15,245           15,245           2,118             13.89%
350 Repairs and maintenance 10,261           10,261           3,941             38.41%
360 Contracted transportation ‐ Field Trips 410                 410                 ‐                      0.00%
366 Travel, conferences and staff training 3,899             3,899             2,170             55.65%
369 Field trips and other student fees 257                 257                 ‐                      0.00%

348‐370 Building lease cost 258,003         258,003         42,700           16.55%
335 Other rentals and operating leases 3,078             3,078             2,455             79.76%
380 Computer and tech related hardware rentals 5,131             5,131             (191)               ‐3.72%
401 Supplies ‐ non instructional 19,753           17,300           4,084             23.61%
405 Non instructional software and license fees 8,869             8,869             5,347             60.28%
406 Instructional software and license fees 3,592             3,592             1,403             39.06%
430 Instructional supplies 12,314           10,755           104                 0.97%
455 Non‐instructional technology supplies 7,696             6,722             ‐                      0.00%
456 Instructional technology supplies 1,026             896                 ‐                      0.00%
460 Textbooks and workbooks 2,000             1,747             ‐                      0.00%

461 Standardized Tests 1,491             4,450             4,450             100.00%

466 Instructional technology devices 2,565             2,241             ‐                      0.00%
490 Food purchased (not for food service) 3,078             3,078             ‐                      0.00%

Three Rivers Montessori
Elk River, Minnesota

Summary Revenue and Expense Statement
As of August 31, 2023

Projected Enrollment 

This financial report is prepared in a modified format in that they exclude footnotes and required supplementary information in order 

to be considered a full set of financial statements. The excluded portions will be included in the School’s fiscal year end financial 

statements. Creative Planning is not a licensed CPA firm and no CPA provides any assurance on this financial report.  

Prepared by Creative Planning Page 6



Months to Date 2 16.67%

2023‐2024

Original 

Budget

2023‐2024 

Working 

Budget

2023‐2024 

Year to Date 

Actual

Year to Date 

Percent of 

Working 

Budget

530 Other equipment purchased 5,131             5,131             1,038             20.22%
740 Interest on sale of receivables / line of credit 1,539             1,539             ‐                      0.00%
820 Dues and memberships 20,715           20,715           9,128             44.07%
895 Indirect costs ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      0.00%
899 Transactions without documentation ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      0.00%

Subtotal general fund expenditures 1,502,421          1,373,025          175,870             12.81%

Title Programs
366 Travel, conferences and staff training 2,078             2,078             ‐                      0.00%
895 Indirect costs ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      0.00%

Subtotal title programs expenditures 2,078                 2,078                 ‐                          0.00%

State Special Education
100 Salaries 324,069         308,118         5,931             1.92%
200 Benefits 76,187           76,027           889                 1.17%
394 Special education fees for services 102,614         102,614         ‐                      0.00%
401 Supplies ‐ non instructional 1,026             1,026             ‐                      0.00%
405 Non instructional software and license fees ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      0.00%
433 Individualized instructional materials 2,565             2,565             ‐                      0.00%
466 Instructional technology devices 1,000             1,000             ‐                      0.00%

Subtotal state special education expenditures 507,462             491,351             6,821                 1.39%

Federal Special Education
303 Federal contracted services < $25,000 26,373           26,373           ‐                      0.00%
366 Travel, conferences and staff training ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      0.00%
401 Supplies ‐ non instructional 1,149             1,149             ‐                      0.00%
405 Non instructional software ‐                      ‐                      1,150             0.00%
433 Individualized instructional materials ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      0.00%

Subtotal federal special education expenditures 27,522               27,522               1,150                 4.18%

Federal CRF/CARES
100 Salaries 9,120             7,256             7,256             100.00%
200 Benefits 1,541             1,226             485                 39.55%
303 Federal contracted services < $25,000 ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      0.00%
401 Supplies ‐ non instructional 500                 500                 25                   5.00%
433 Individualized instructional materials 1,000             1,000             ‐                      0.00%
490 Food purchased (not for food service) 500                 500                 ‐                      0.00%

Subtotal federal CRF/CARES expenditures 12,661               10,482               7,766                 74.09%

Subtotal all expenditures 2,052,145      1,904,458      191,606         10.06%
Transfer to food service fund ‐                      9,373             ‐                     

Total expenditures 2,052,145$   1,913,831$   191,606$       10.01%

General fund net income 93,653$         (19,953)$        118,880$      

Food Services Fund ‐ 02
Revenues

300     State revenues 6,533$           5,706$           ‐$                    0.00%
400     Federal revenues 85,170$         74,389$         ‐                      0.00%
474     USDA commodities received ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐                      0.00%
600s     Sales of lunches, breakfasts, and milk ‐$                    ‐$                    76                   0.00%

Subtotal revenues 91,703           80,094           76                   0.09%
Transfer from General Fund ‐                      9,373             ‐                     

Total revenues 91,703$         89,467$         76$                 0.08%

Expenditures
100 Salaries 19,000           12,600           ‐                      0.00%

200 Benefits 5,611             1,997             ‐                      0.00%

300 Purchased services 1,530             1,530             ‐                      0.00%
401 Supplies and materials 2,052             2,052             ‐                      0.00%

490/495 Food and milk 81,578           71,252           ‐                      0.00%
491 Federal commodities used ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      0.00%
820 Dues, memberships, other fees ‐                      36                   ‐                      0.00%

Total expenditures 109,772$       89,467$         ‐$                    0.00%

Food services fund net income (18,069)$        ‐$                    76$                

This financial report is prepared in a modified format in that they exclude footnotes and required supplementary information in order 

to be considered a full set of financial statements. The excluded portions will be included in the School’s fiscal year end financial 

statements. Creative Planning is not a licensed CPA firm and no CPA provides any assurance on this financial report.  

Prepared by Creative Planning Page 7



Months to Date 2 16.67%

2023‐2024

Original 

Budget

2023‐2024 

Working 

Budget

2023‐2024 

Year to Date 

Actual

Year to Date 

Percent of 

Working 

Budget

Community Services Fund ‐ 04
Revenues

50 Before and After care fees 61,630$         48,829$         5,484             11.23%
Subtotal revenues 61,630           48,829           5,484             11.23%

Transfer from General Fund ‐                      0                     ‐                     
Total revenues 61,630$         48,829$         5,484$           11.23%

Expenditures
100 Salaries 43,782           22,200           4,555             20.52%

200 Benefits 7,971             3,744             709                 18.95%

300 Purchased services 1,020             1,020             ‐                      0.00%
401 Supplies and materials 875                 875                 98                   11.16%

Total expenditures 53,648$         27,839$         5,362$           19.26%

Community services fund net income 7,982$           20,989$         122$             

Total All Funds
Revenues

State revenues 2,086,165$   1,835,597$   301,571$       16.43%
Federal revenues 127,432         114,471         8,915             7.79%
Local revenues 85,535           72,733           5,560             7.64%
Fund transfers ‐                      9,373             ‐                     

Total revenues 2,299,131$   2,032,173$   316,046$       15.55%

Expenditures
Salaries and wages 1,096,419$   951,974$       61,195$         6.43%
Employee benefits 260,069         223,740         26,406           11.80%
Purchased services 677,060         677,060         82,542           12.19%
Supplies and materials 154,631         141,570         16,660           11.77%
Facilities and equipment 5,131             5,131             1,038             0.00%
Dues and memberships; fees; other expenses 20,715           20,751           9,128             43.99%
Other program costs ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      0.00%

Total expenditures 2,215,565$   2,031,137$   196,968$       9.70%

Total revenues all funds 2,299,131$   2,032,173$   316,046$       15.55%
Total expenditures all funds 2,215,565      2,031,137      196,968         9.70%

Net income ‐ all funds 83,566$         1,036$           119,078$      

Beginning fund balance, district wide 280,827 280,827 280,827

Ending fund balance, district wide 364,393 281,863 399,906

This financial report is prepared in a modified format in that they exclude footnotes and required supplementary information in order 

to be considered a full set of financial statements. The excluded portions will be included in the School’s fiscal year end financial 

statements. Creative Planning is not a licensed CPA firm and no CPA provides any assurance on this financial report.  

Prepared by Creative Planning Page 8



State Aid 

Payments

Federal Aid 

Payments

Other 

Receipts

Line of 

Credit 

Draw

Prior Year 

State and 

Federal 

Receivable

Total 

Receipts

Salaries 

and 

Benefits  

(Net)

Other 

Expenses ‐ 

AP

Payments 

Made on 

Line of 

Credit

Total 

Expenses

Jul 1 Beginning Balance 172,312$     

Jul 31 127,595            ‐                  3,166         ‐                  49,886       180,647        34,175        71,908         ‐                  106,084         246,876        

Aug 31 127,810            ‐                  1,595         ‐                  43,043       172,447        36,597        119,271       ‐                  155,868         263,455        

Sept 30 127,600            6,763         6,545         ‐                  47,218       188,126        65,000        112,000       ‐                  177,000         274,581        

Oct 31 127,600            16,763       6,545         ‐                  34,734       185,642        65,000        112,000       ‐                  177,000         283,223        

Nov 30 127,600            6,763         6,545         ‐                  ‐                  140,908        65,000        112,000       ‐                  177,000         136,220        

Dec 31 127,600            6,763         6,545         ‐                  ‐                  140,908        65,000        110,000       ‐                  175,000         102,128        

Jan 31 127,600            16,763       6,545         ‐                  4,172         155,080        65,000        112,000       ‐                  177,000         80,208           

Feb 28 127,600            6,763         6,545         ‐                  580             141,488        65,000        110,000       ‐                  175,000         46,696           

Mar 31 127,600            6,763         6,545         50,000       ‐                  190,908        65,000        112,000       ‐                  177,000         60,604           

Apr 30 127,600            16,763       6,545         13,947       164,855        65,000        112,000       ‐                  177,000         48,460           

May 31 127,600            6,763         6,545         50,000       ‐                  190,908        65,000        112,000       ‐                  177,000         62,368           

June 30 127,600            6,763         6,545         ‐                  100,000     240,908        65,000        100,000       165,000         138,276        

Totals 1,531,405        97,626       70,216       ‐                  293,580     1,992,827    720,772      1,295,180    ‐                  2,015,952     138,276        

Projected Cash Flow for FY2024-2025
Jul 31 130,000            5,000         3,166         ‐                  ‐                  138,166        34,500        71,908         106,408         170,033        

Aug 31 130,000            5,000         1,500         ‐                  50,446       186,946        40,000        125,000       100,000     265,000         91,980           

Sept 30 130,000            10,000       7,000         ‐                  37,835       184,835        80,000        125,000       ‐                  205,000         71,815           

Oct 31 130,000            20,000       7,000         ‐                  25,223       182,223        80,000        125,000       ‐                  205,000         49,038           

Assumptions: 10% State Aid Holdback

This financial report is prepared in a modified format in that they exclude footnotes and required supplementary information in order to be considered a full set of financial statements. The 

excluded portions will be included in the School’s fiscal year end financial statements. Creative Planning is not a licensed CPA firm and no CPA provides any assurance on this financial report.  

Three Rivers Montessori

Cash Flow Projection Summary

2023‐2024 School Year

Period 

Ending

Cash Inflows (Revenues) Cash Outflows (Expenditures)

Cash Balance

Prepared by Creative Planning Page 9



Supplemental Information

August 31, 2023

Three Rivers Montessori

Elk River, Minnesota

District 4266



Prepared by Creative Planning Page 2



Prepared by Creative Planning Page 3



Prepared by Creative Planning Page 4



Prepared by Creative Planning Page 5















9/11/2023

TRM School Board,

We are writing as current TRM staff to share our input on the environment of
Three Rivers as of lately. There has been a lot of recent change and turnover here
at our school (both with staff and families). There has been many changes and not
all of the changes have been easy. Towards the end of the summer, we were
worried there would not be a TRM to return to this fall and were hesitant to
return with so many unknowns.

However, we felt passionately about the school and love for the students. We
wanted to see things out and be the best we could. The staff really came together
and we want to share that we feel confident in our ability to provide the children
with successful educations this year.

We have noticed a change in the environment of our school this year and feel it is
a more positive environment with staff members who are passionate about
working with children and helping them grow. The group of teachers and support
staff we have are dedicated and work extremely well together.

We will admit that the negativity and gossip of last school year were easy to get
caught up in, and we were easily influenced by the voices of louder more
experienced staff members. We are not innocent in all the negativity because it
was so easy to agree with those louder voices.

With the recent changes, our school is feeling like a more productive and pleasant
work environment. While we may be a small staff, the team that we have is very
strong.

Being 2 weeks into the school year, we are getting into the groove and are feeling
good about where we are at. Already, compared to this time last year, we are at a
significantly better place. Coming to work each day has been much more



enjoyable and it is easy to see by stepping into our classrooms. We are hopeful for
the future of our school both this year and in years to come.



THREE RIVERS MONTESSORI 2022-23 Environmental Literacy Plan

Indicator Area 1: Awareness

Students demonstrate an awareness of the relationship between the environment and human life
and the diversity of life that shares the earth with humans.

Goal: Students and staff at Three Rivers Montessori have the awareness, or are increasing their
awareness, of the relationship between the environment and human life.

Strategy 1.1

The 2nd/3rd Grade classrooms at TRM have materials and lessons devoted to the study of the
variety of life on our planet as well as charts that illustrate the characteristics of biomes covering
the earth’s surface. Classroom materials include nomenclature cards for matching each biome
with its characteristics as well as folders that include photographs of the land, flora and fauna of
each biome. Folders also include photographs of people and how they live, work, dress and
interact with the environment by utilizing resources unique to each biome. Students conduct in
depth studies of each biome by writing reports and making drawings and maps to illustrate the
diversity of life on earth.

Evaluation method 1.1

Students are able to correctly identify each biome when asked to match nomenclature cards with
photos and labels unique to each biome. This goal is measured by the ability of 90% of students
in both 2nd/3rd Grade classrooms to correctly match all biome picture/informational cards to
the card with the name of the biome (e.g. desert, tundra, etc.) when evaluated by the teacher.

Results: 91.1% of the students in the Cedar (grades 2/3) classroom correctly matched all biome
picture/informational cards to the card with the name of the biome (e.g. desert, tundra, etc.)
when evaluated by the teacher; and 100% of the students in the Willow (grades 2/3) correctly
matched all biome picture/informational cards to the card with the name of the biome (e.g.
desert, tundra, etc.) when evaluated by the teacher

Strategy 1.2

All TRM students study the relationships between plants, animals and humans at varying degrees
in the K/1, E1 and E2 classrooms. At the Kindergarten level students study how human beings and
plants depend on each other by meeting each other's needs for oxygen and carbon dioxide.
Children learn the parts of the plant and the function of each part as well as basic human needs. At
the E1 level students explore how the earth provides natural resources used by humans such as
wood, oil, coal and water which have been used for many years to provide warmth, electricity and
transportation for humans. In the E2 classroom students explore more deeply the connection
between humans and their environment as well as how these resources have been used
throughout history for the advancement of civilizations. Students develop an appreciation for the
ingenuity of their ancestors and a reverence for what the earth has provided.

Evaluation method 1.2

At the K/1 level, 90% of students across three classrooms of K/1 students are able to correctly
verbally identify and label the parts of the plant. To answer correctly, students will be able to say
the part aloud to the teacher and place the correct label for each part.



Results: 99% of the students in the Ash (grades K/1) classroom were able to correctly verbally
identify and label the parts of the plant; 100% of the students in the Maple (grades K/1)
classroom were able to correctly verbally identify and label the parts of the plant.



Indicator Area 2: Knowledge

Students have knowledge of how natural systems function and how human systems interact with
and depend on them.

Goal: Students and staff at Three Rivers Montessori have the knowledge, or are increasing their
knowledge, of human and natural systems and processes.

Strategy 2.1

Students at TRM begin their study of natural systems during their Kindergarten year with their
study of landforms. This involves matching nomenclature cards. These are three-part cards: One
with the photo of the landform AND the label, one with just the photo and one with just the label.
Students engage in hands-on manipulation of materials to create landforms out of clay or other
materials. After concrete experiences with these materials, students are assessed for mastery.
Students are asked to match the picture card of each landform with just the label for each
landform studied.

Evaluation method 2.1

Students in each K/1 class are able to correctly match landform nomenclature pictures and
labels. Upon assessment, 90% of students will correctly match all landform nomenclature
picture cards to the name of the landform (e.g. peninsula, isthmus, etc.) to meet this goal.

Results: 79% of the students in the Ash (grades K/1) classroom were able to correctly match the
all landform nomenclature picture cards to the name of the landform (e.g. peninsula, isthmus,
etc.); 95% of the students in the Maple (grades K/1) classroom were able to correctly match all
landform nomenclature picture cards to the name of the landform (e.g. peninsula, isthmus, etc.)

Strategy 2.2

Students in the 2nd/3rd classroom study the work of water on the earth. This begins by studying
liquids (how liquids flow and how liquids take the shape of their container), then students study
the parts of the river, how a river flows and finally construct their own model which illustrates
erosion! Students label the parts and explain how erosion works by demonstrating layers of
sediment with the model as a variety of colors of “sand” are washed down the river making
deposits in the basin.

Evaluation method 2.2

90% of 2nd/3rd Grade students can correctly identify the parts of the river as presented as well
as explain the process of erosion when asked by the teacher.

Results: 100% of the students in the Cedar (grades 2/3) classroom correctly identified the parts
of the river as presented as well as explained the process of erosion when asked by the teacher.;
and 85% of the students in the Willow (grades 2/3) correctly identified the parts of the river as
presented as well as explained the process of erosion when asked by the teacher.



Indicator Area 3: Attitudes

Students demonstrate respect and concern for the earth’s health and the motivation to participate in
environmental stewardship.

Goal: Students and faculty at Three Rivers Montessori have an attitude, or are increasing their
attitude of, appreciation and concern for the environment.

Strategy 3.1

Students in all classrooms at TRM participate in school-wide recycling. Recycling bins exist
throughout the school community and the school has an industrial outdoor recycling container
emptied weekly. Children in the E2 (4th-6th) classroom have three bins to organize waste: Garbage,
mixed recycling and compost (for the butterfly garden).

Evaluation method 3.1

The E2 teacher will conduct observations to determine if students are able to sort recyclables with
accuracy. The E2 students will be able to correctly sort garbage, mixed recyclables and compostable
materials with at least 90% accuracy.

Results: 43% of the students in the Birch (grades 4-6) classroom sorted recyclables with
accuracy. 74% of the students in the Walnut (grades 4-6) classroom sorted recyclables with
accuracy.

Strategy 3.2

Students in all classrooms at TRM will participate in a “Plant a Tree Day”. The day will consist of
multidisciplinary activities for all students to explore and gain knowledge on the ways trees
contribute to the environment. The students will also attend a tree planting ceremony on the TRM
compass.

Evaluation method 3.2

Students will demonstrate an appreciation for the important role trees play in our environment. In
preparation for this day students will make posters. These posters will be used by teachers to
evaluate that 90% of E1 and E2 students are able to identify at least 3 ways in which trees
contribute to our environment.

Results: All students participated in the plant a tree day and all students worked to create
posters that showed how trees contribute to our environment. 100% of the E2 students identified
at least 3 ways which trees contribute to our environment.

Indicator Area 4: Skills

Students possess the skills needed to identify and critically analyze environmental issues, and to
contribute to resolving the root of environmental challenges.

Goal: Students and faculty at Three Rivers Montessori have or are increasing their problem solving
and critical thinking skills as it relates to the environment and human life.



Strategy 4.1

The E2 classroom conducts a unit with a focus on renewable energy. This includes dividing the



classroom into groups that study solar energy, wind energy, hydropower, biomass, biofuel and
geothermal energy. Groups then write opinion papers on the types of energy with a focus on
usefulness, effectiveness and the impact on the environment.

Evaluation method 4.1

Student papers and presentations are evaluated on the accuracy of information including
examples of renewable energy sources that are current (within the last 10 years), as well as the
ability to use critical thinking skills to analyze the effectiveness of renewable energy types. The
critical thinking piece of the paper is evaluated by the students’ ability to articulate how effective
the renewable energy source has been in making a positive impact on the environment. Students
will present their work to the class, upon which they are evaluated for clarity of the content
presented as well as audience response. Students receive one point for each topic on a rubric for
evaluation. The topics include: 1) The accuracy of the information; 2) Critical thinking skills used
in analyzing the topic; 3) The completeness of information presented; 4) The visual appeal of the
presentation and preparedness of the student for the presentation. 80% of students will achieve
at least a 4 out of 5 on the rubric.

See Exhibit A

Results: 100% of the students in the Birch (grades 4-6) classroom completed a paper and
presentation on renewable energy; 87% of the students in the Walnut (grades 4-6) classroom
completed a paper and presentation on renewable energy

Strategy 4.2

Students in 2nd-6th grade classrooms conduct an annual “Environmental Awareness Fair.” The
K/1 classroom and parents from each classroom are invited to tour the classrooms where
students will present their projects. The students are divided into groups and will be asked to
conduct research as well as develop a presentation/demonstration that illustrates issues
affecting the health and longevity of the environment and what humans can do to help.

Evaluation method 4.2

Students will be evaluated on a rubric that includes an overall understanding of the issue, the
effectiveness of the presentation/demonstration and their ability to communicate to an audience.
Students receive one point for each topic on a rubric for evaluation. 90% of students will receive
at least a 4 out of 5 on the rubric for each point of performance/requirement.

See Exhibit B

Results: 100% of the students received at least a 4 out of 5 on the rubric for their participation
in the Environmental Fair.

Indicator Area 5: Action

Students have the capacity, or are increasing their capacity, to perceive and interpret the health of
environmental and social systems and take appropriate action to maintain, restore, or improve the
health of those systems.

Goal: Students and staff at Three Rivers Montessori demonstrate the capacity, or are increasing
their capacity, to work individually and collectively toward sustaining a healthy natural
environment.



Strategy 5.1

Three Rivers Montessori students will also make efforts to reuse and recycle items from their



homes. 2nd-6th grade students will spend one week documenting recycling efforts at home by
recording the approximate number of items recycled each day and items that were
reused/repurposed at home. Teachers will present on how to appropriately recycle/repurpose
items and also help students identify local recycling locations in their area if the child does not
have a recycling service at home. The teachers will collect the data at the end of the week and
work with the students to determine results of their data.

Evaluation method 5.1

90% of students across all classrooms will have recycled at least 20 items total during the week
and repurposed at least 5 items.

Results: 43% of the students in the Birch (grades 4-6) room recycled at least 20 items at home;
74% of the students in the Walnut (grades 4-6) room recycled at least 20 items at home

Strategy 5.2

Students in all classrooms at TRM will participate in rainwater harvesting. Rain barrels will be set
up on the school grounds and the E2 students will collect rainwater to use for our indoor plants
and outside garden beds.

Evaluation method 5.2
A collection report will be completed by TRM E2 students throughout the spring. The report will
include how much water was collected, by whom, and how it was used. The number of TRM E2
students that have participated in this activity will be at least 90% of students.

See Exhibit C

Results: Students did install a rain barrel and water was harvested. The collection report was
only used minimally and not tracked on a regular occurrence due to staffing shortages and
teachers leaving mid-year.

Additional Questions
1. Describe the school’s approach to environmental education.

The Montessori method of education makes a strong connection between the natural world
and child development. It is stressed that the student should learn to appreciate the
outside world and all it has to offer. Maria Montessori wrote, “The land is where our
roots are, the children must be taught to feel and live in harmony with the Earth.”

At Three Rivers Montessori, nature and environmental education is a vital part of our
educational philosophy. TRM offers our students Dr. Montessori’s “cosmic education”
which emphasizes the interconnectedness of humanity and nature. The foundation of
this approach is the belief that students should understand that they are part of a
greater universe and must seek to find their role in making it a better place.

At Three Rivers Montessori we believe that nature should be used to inspire the students.
That is why our teachers use natural learning materials (real wood, metal, bamboo and
cotton rather than plastics or other synthetics) in our prepared environment and
consider the outdoor environment as an extension of the classroom.

We strive to help our students become naturalists by allowing them to spend time



interacting with our outdoor environment. We promote self-exploration and discovery.
We offer opportunities for our students to dig deeper into things that they become
passionate about. It is our belief that as the students form connections with nature
they will become more environmentally responsible and become stewards of the
environment.

 
0. What have been your successes and challenges related to environmental
education this year?

As a fairly new school that just completed our third year, trying to develop our
environmental education program has been met with many challenges. Two of our biggest
challenges would include:

1. Educating our teaching staff on our EE expectations with transient staffing throughout
the year

2. Developing an outside environment that is rich in possibilities while understanding
the limitations of our space including environmental factors and budgetary
constraints

We are working to creatively address these areas. Staff and administration changes that took
place during the 2022-2023 school year were problematic to our EE program. Transitions
between directors and mid-year changes in our teaching staff seem to have resulted in our
EPL goals falling on the Curriculum Coordinator to disseminate to the substitute staff. This
caused us to fall short on certain goals. In an effort to address this problem, the
administration has hired a full time Director of Teaching and Learning who will help to
implement our ELP going forward. Training on the plan will be covered thoroughly each year.

We received a parent donation to buy and plant three new trees and continue to develop our
pollinator garden.

The turnover of staff, the decrease of our enrollment, and the lack of Montessori training of
our support staff have also lent itself to difficulties. However, as stated we have been able to
make some improvements and begin to plan for future development of our EE program.

We have had many successes with our EE program this year such as:

1. Year 3 of our annual Environmental Awareness Fair was a huge success. All students
from 2-6th grade participated in this year's fair. Students were able to invite the other
families (along with many grandparents) to listen as they made their presentations. It
was a massive undertaking by the students that took weeks to research and prepare
their projects. The staff and parents were very impressed and complimentary
towards the students' efforts.

2. We successfully installed a rain barrel and the students used it to water the pollinator
garden and learn about how to use our natural resources in creative ways.

 
0. What voices are being centered in the school’s EE program? What voices are
currently missing in the EE program?

The Montessori method takes a child-centered holistic approach to education. Students
are encouraged to take ownership of their education. The teacher is trained to provide the optimal
environment and then allow the child to follow their passion and do the work of learning from that
environment. The method also stresses the importance of independence, personal responsibility and
care of the environment (inside and outside). For these reasons, TRM student’s voices are very
important when it comes to our EE program. We have made a conscious effort to include students in



as much of the planning and development of our program as possible. For example, students worked
to maintain the pollinator garden that sits at our lower level.
Many of our TRM families have also become involved in helping our EE program to develop as
indicated by the many donations we received to improve our outdoor spaces.

One area that could be improved upon would be the involvement of our special education department
in the ELP process and planning. We are hopeful that by having a Director of Teaching and Learning
and in house SPED Coordinator that we are better able to bridge the gap between special education
and general education in all areas, including our environmental learning plan.

 
0. Based on the results from this year, what are some of your plans for EE in
the school next year? Include how you plan to increase students' environmental
literacy during periods of distance learning should they occur. 

We plan to simplify our ELP and create more authentic experiences for students to
engage with environmental studies. We are a Montessori school so will not be
implementing any type of distance learning. Ultimately we hope that the ELP merges
seamlessly with our Montessori practices and doesn’t feel disjointed or that we are
just doing another thing.



Exhibit A

RENEWABLE ENERGY REPORT

1 = incomplete and dissatisfactory; 5 = complete and highly satisfactory

The information presented in the report is accurate and sources are cited appropriately.

1 2 3 4 5

Critical thinking skills were used to analyze the topic.

1 2 3 4 5

The information is complete. The report has an introduction, body and conclusion.

1 2 3 4 5

The project and presentation are visually appealing.

1 2 3 4 5

All students participated and were prepared for the presentation.

1 2 3 4 5



Exhibit B

TRM ENVIRONMENTAL FAIR RUBRIC

1 = incomplete and dissatisfactory; 5 = complete and highly satisfactory

Students found interesting and complete information about the topic.

1 2 3 4 5

The presentation reflects accurate information.

1 2 3 4 5

All students participated in creating the visual presentation.

1 2 3 4 5

Students were appropriately prepared for the verbal explanation of the project and
posters.

1 2 3 4 5

All students participated in the verbal presentation of the project.

1 2 3 4 5

Students engaged the audience and appropriately answered questions regarding the
project.

1 2 3 4 5



Exhibit C

TRM RAINWATER HARVESTING

Date Amount Collected By whom Used inWhat
Capacity














	3af61112-1237-49ec-800d-4f1fe854a954.pdf
	cover.pdf
	NEW es.pdf
	dash.pdf
	bs.pdf
	is.pdf
	cash.pdf

	b4549c91-6c73-4a16-808a-9962aa9e2cec.pdf
	supp cover
	Receipt Listing Report with Det
	Payment Register by Bank and Ck
	Journal Entry Listing


